
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

March 20, 2023 at 6:30 PM 

Hewitt City Hall, 200 Patriot Court, Hewitt, TX 76643 

AGENDA 
 

Steve Fortenberry, Mayor, Ward 3 

Michael S. Bancale, Mayor Pro Tem, At-Large – Vacant, Council Member, Ward 1 

Johnny Stephens, Council Member, Ward 1 – Johnny Price, Council Member, Ward 2 

Bob Potter, Council Member, Ward 2 – Erica Bruce, Council Member, Ward 3 

The meeting will be streamed live on the city’s website at www.cityofhewitt.com/790/Hewitt-TX-TV. 

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sec. 551.127, on a regular, non-emergency basis, members 

may attend and participate in the meeting remotely by video conference. Should that occur, a 

quorum of the members will be physically present at the location noted above on this agenda. 

 

WORKSHOP MEETING - 6:30 PM 

WORKSHOP DECLARATION OF A QUORUM AND CALL TO ORDER 

WORKSHOP AGENDA 

1. Presentation of the FY 2021-2022 audit report by Chris Pruitt, Partner, Pattillo, Brown & Hill, 

LLP. 

WORKSHOP ADJOURNMENT 

 

REGULAR MEETING - 7:00 PM 

DECLARATION OF A QUORUM AND CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION(S) AND RECOGNITION(S) 

2. Special presentation to the Hewitt Public Library - 2022 Achievement of Excellence in 

Libraries Award. 

 

 

1



PUBLIC COMMENTS 

The City Council invites citizens to speak on any topic not already scheduled for a public hearing. The 

Texas Open Meetings Act prohibits the Council from discussing, responding to, or acting on any 

comments or items not properly posted on the agenda. [Note: Members of the public who wish to speak 

must complete a “Public Comment Form” and present it to the City Secretary before the meeting.] 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

3. Approve minutes of the City Council Regular Meeting of March 06, 2023.  

4. Motion to accept the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). 

5. Briefing and discussion concerning Financial Statements ending February 28, 2023. 

6. Discussion and possible action on appointment to the Library Board.  

7. Discussion and possible action regarding the purchase of Hewitt Police vehicles. 

8. Discussion and possible action regarding a request from UTEC and UTEM for waiver of 

penalty and interest on property tax. 

9. Discussion and presentation of Hewitt Drought Contingency Plan. 

ADJOURNMENT 

I certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on the Public Notice Board located in front of City 

Hall on March 15, 2023, by 5:00 PM. 

CITY OF HEWITT 

 

___________________________ 

Lydia Lopez, TRMC/CMC 

City Secretary 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Hewitt will provide reasonable 

accommodations for persons attending and/or participating in City Council meetings. The facility is 

wheelchair accessible, with handicap parking available at the front of the building. Requests for sign 

interpreters or special services must be received forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting by calling the 

City Secretary at 254.296.5602 or by fax at 254.666.6014.  

2



 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM FORM 

 
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2023 
 
AGENDA ITEM #: 1 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Lee Garcia, Finance Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
Presentation of the FY 2021-2022 audit report by Chris Pruitt, Partner, Pattillo, Brown & 
Hill, LLP. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Chris Pruitt, Partner at Pattillo, Brown & Hill, LLP, will present the Fiscal Year 2021-
2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report to the City Council.  Council will be 
provided the opportunity to ask questions and make comments.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Amount Budgeted – N/A 
Line Item in Budget – N/A 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
No motion at this time. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Hard copies of the FY 2021-2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report were 
distributed with the council packet. 
 
 

 

 

 

3

Item 1.



Achievement of Library Excellence Award 

Information Sheet 
 

Each year, the Texas Municipal Library Directors Association (TMLDA) confers awards for outstanding 

contributions by public libraries to their communities. Since 1966 TMLDA has served to promote the 

public library profession, improve the methods of library service delivery, and maintain high standards 

of professional ethics. TMLDA remains an affiliate of the Texas Municipal League.  

The Achievement of Library Excellence Award is open to TMLDA member library directors and the 

libraries they represent. To receive the Achievement of Library Excellence Award, the library must 

support standards of excellence in the following categories:  

1. Services to underserved populations either through outreach, special programs, collaborations 

with other libraries or organizations, special classes, special collections, etc.  

2. Innovative and effective marketing materials highlighting basic services and publicity about 

specific programs the library offers 

3. Collaborative efforts with community organizations 

4. Enhanced service to the public during the past year either through increase in service or a 

change in type of services 

5. Literacy support for all ages (including summer reading programs) 

6. Support for digital inclusion through public internet access, digital literacy training, and online 

library services  

7. Support for workforce development 

8. Cultural, topical, and educational programming for adults and families 

9. Professional staff training to include training opportunities for staff at all levels  

10. Any other initiatives that speak to library excellence 

TMLDA recognizes that two of the many strengths of Texas libraries are individuality and the ability to 

meet the specific needs of the communities served. Each award-winning library has chosen to 

emphasize the programs and services that best support local users where they live, work, and play. 

While no two public libraries are alike, they each strive for excellence. 

According to the Texas State Library and Archives Commission, 542 public libraries exist in Texas. Of 

those libraries, only 73 received this award in 2022.  

4

Item 2.



 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM FORM 

 
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2023 
 
AGENDA ITEM #: 3 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Lydia Lopez, City Secretary 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
Approve minutes of the City Council Regular Meeting of March 6, 2023. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Attached is a draft copy of the meeting minutes. Please review and advise if any 
corrections are needed.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Amount Budgeted – N/A 
Line Item in Budget – N/A 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
I move approval of the minutes as presented but to allow for corrections. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Draft minutes  
 

 

 

 

5

Item 3.



 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

March 06, 2023 at 7:00 PM 

Hewitt City Hall, 200 Patriot Court, Hewitt, TX 76643 

MINUTES 
 

Steve Fortenberry, Mayor, Ward 3 

Michael S. Bancale, Mayor Pro Tem, At-Large – Vacant, Council Member, Ward 1 

Johnny Stephens, Council Member, Ward 1 – Johnny Price, Council Member, Ward 2 

Bob Potter, Council Member, Ward 2 – Erica Bruce, Council Member, Ward 3 

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sec. 551.127, on a regular, non-emergency basis, members 

may attend and participate in the meeting remotely by video conference. Should that occur, a 

quorum of the members will be physically present at the location noted above on this agenda. 

REGULAR MEETING - 7:00 PM 

DECLARATION OF A QUORUM AND CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Pro Tem Michael Bancale called the Regular Meeting to order at 7:00 PM, declared a quorum of 

the Council. Mayor Steve Fortenberry was absent.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Pro Tem Bancale led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

The City Council invites citizens to speak on any topic not already scheduled for a public hearing. The 

Texas Open Meetings Act prohibits the Council from discussing, responding to, or acting on any 

comments or items not properly posted on the agenda. [Note: Members of the public who wish to speak 

must complete a “Public Comment Form” and present it to the City Secretary before the meeting.] 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Bancale read the statement above and inquired if the City Secretary received any public 

comment forms. The City Secretary received no public comment forms. 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

1. APPROVE MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 21, 

2023. 

MOTION: Council Member Bob Potter moved approval of the minutes as presented but to allow 

for corrections. 

SECOND: Council Member Johnny Price 

6

Item 3.



Hewitt City Council Minutes – March 06, 2023 

Page 2 of 2 

 

AYES: Bruce, Potter, Price, Stephens, and Bancale  

NAYES: None 

ABSENT: Fortenberry 

MOTION PASSED. 

 

2. PRESENTATION OF CITY ENGINEER'S REPORT BY CITY ENGINEER MILES 

WHITNEY, P.E. 

 UPDATE ON PENDING UTILITY PROJECTS.  

 UPDATE ON PENDING STREET PROJECTS. 

 UPDATE ON PENDING DRAINAGE PROJECTS. 

City Engineer Miles Whitney presented a review of the listed projects.  

3. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON STAFFING FOR ADEQUATE FIRE AND 

EMERGENCY RESPONSE (SAFER) GRANT APPLICATION. 

City Manager Bo Thomas and Fire Chief Jonathan Christian presented. 

MOTION: Council Member Johnny Price moved approval to authorize the Fire Department to 

submit a grant application for the SAFER Grant through the U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

(DHS) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

SECOND: Council Member Erica Bruce 

AYES: Bruce, Potter, Price, Stephens, and Bancale  

NAYES: None 

ABSENT: Fortenberry 

MOTION PASSED. 

ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION: Council Member Erica Bruce moved to adjourn the Regular meeting at 7:08 PM. 

SECOND: Council Member Bob Potter  

AYES: Bruce, Potter, Price, Stephens, and Bancale  

NAYES: None 

ABSENT: Fortenberry 

MOTION PASSED. 

 

 

Approved: __________________ 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_____________________________    ________________________________ 

Lydia Lopez, City Secretary  Steve Fortenberry, Mayor  

 

 

 

7

Item 3.



 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM FORM 

 
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2023 
 
AGENDA ITEM #: 4 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Lee Garcia, Finance Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
Motion to accept the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
(ACFR). 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Having had the presentation by Chris Pruitt, Partner, Pattillo, Brown & Hill, LLP, of the 
FY 2021-2022 audit report, the audit is now being submitted to the City Council for 
formal acceptance. 
 
The ACFR will then be posted on the city’s website and submitted to the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board, Electronic Municipal Market Access dataport along with 
required Continuing Disclosure data.  This is a website used by the public and investors 
to research bond information. 
 
We will also be applying once more to the Government Finance Officers Association for 
award consideration.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Amount Budgeted – N/A 
Line Item in Budget – N/A 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
I move to accept the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report as 
presented. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
 
 

 

 
8

Item 4.



 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM FORM 

 
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2023 
 
AGENDA ITEM #: 5 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Lee Garcia, Finance Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
Briefing and discussion concerning Financial Statements ending February 28, 2023.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
The financial statements ending February 28, 2023 were sent electronically on March 10, 
2023.  This is an opportunity for the council to ask any questions or make comments. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Amount Budgeted – N/A 
Line Item in Budget – N/A 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
No action required. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None. 
 

 

 

 

9

Item 5.



 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM FORM 

 
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2023 
 
AGENDA ITEM #: 6 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Lydia Lopez, City Secretary 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
Discussion and possible action on appointment to the Library Board. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
The Library Board has one vacancy. We received an application from Delores K. 
Sincerney, who expressed an interest in serving. Ms. Sincerney will be present to meet the 
Council and for a brief interview. 
 
If appointed, Ms. Sincerney will serve an unexpired term ending in December 2023. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Amount Budgeted – NA 
Line Item in Budget- NA 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
I move to approve the appointment of Delores K. Sincerney to the Library Board for an 
unexpired term ending in December 2023. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Application 

10

Item 6.



11

Item 6.



 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM FORM 

 
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2023 
 
AGENDA ITEM #: 7 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Jim Devlin, Police Chief 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
Discussion and possible action regarding the purchase of Hewitt Police vehicles. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Over the last three years, the Hewitt Police Department has been concerned with the 
marked patrol vehicle fleet, with the inability to find fleet vehicles and equipment.  In the 
Fiscal Year 21/22 budget, the Hewitt City Council authorized the Hewitt Police 
Department to purchase three replacement marked patrol vehicles.  These vehicles were 
ordered and took eighteen months to be delivered.  In the Fiscal Year 22/23 budget, the 
Hewitt City Council again authorized the purchase of three replacement marked patrol 
vehicles.  These vehicles have been ordered and the expected delivery date is believed to 
be twelve to eighteen months away. 
 
The Chief of Police has located a local vehicle vendor that is in current possession of police 
units and equipment that are available for upfitting, meeting the needs of the Hewitt 
Patrol Division.  The vehicles that have been located are three 2022 Chevrolet Tahoe PPVs 
and associated equipment. These vehicles would have a short turnaround time, with an 
expected delivery to be in the early summer of 2023.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
$179,742.00 – graphics not included in the quote. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
I move to authorize the purchase of three Chevrolet Tahoe PPVs in the amount of  
$179, 742.00 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
CAP Fleet vehicle quote 
 

12

Item 7.



13

Item 7.



14

Item 7.



15

Item 7.



16

Item 7.



 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM FORM 

 
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2023 
 
AGENDA ITEM #: 8 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Bo Thomas, City Manager 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
Discussion and possible action regarding a request from UTEC and UTEM for waiver of 
penalty and interest on property taxes.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
January 31, 2023 was the deadline for postmark for property taxes due without penalty 
and interest being assessed. Based upon weather conditions this year, the Postal Service 
was not open to postmark payments prior to the deadline. UTEC and UTEM have 
requested waiver of their penalties and interest due to the inability of the Postal Service 
to postmark their payment due to weather closure. The County has specified a process 
that they have recently utilized to waive certain penalties and interest based upon these 
same conditions. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Amount Budgeted – NA 
Line Item in Budget – NA 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
At Council’s discretion. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Requests from UTEC and UTEM 
Email correspondence with the County 
 

17

Item 8.



18

Item 8.



19

Item 8.



20

Item 8.



21

Item 8.



22

Item 8.



23

Item 8.



24

Item 8.



 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM FORM 

 
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2023 
 
AGENDA ITEM #: 9 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Kevin Reinke, Utilities Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
Discussion and presentation of the Hewitt Drought Contingency Plan.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Presentation/Discussion to Council of Hewitt’s Drought Contingency Plan. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Amount Budgeted – NA 
Line Item in Budget – NA 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Power Point Presentation 
 

 

 

25

Item 9.



Summer 2023 Outlook

Hewitt Drought 
Contingency Review

26

Item 9.



2022 Summary

 Stage 2 implemented July 14

 Stage 2 revised August 16

 Well production from May-Sept.- 248,907,000 mil gal

 Purchased Waco water from May-Sept.- 61,411,000 mil gal

27

Item 9.



Water Use

• Per Texas A&M AgriLife extension, 25% of water 
produced in urban areas goes toward irrigating

• Of the 310,318,000 mil gal produced- 77,579,500 gal 
for irrigation

28

Item 9.



Account Comparison - Before/After

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Resident 1 68,900 61,200 64,100 25,600 71,300

Resident 2 96,100 93,300 92,700 52,500 79,500

Resident 3 85,300 88,100 112,000 77,400 133,700

Resident 4 199,500 140,000 206,400 132,200 204,800

Resident 5 103,500 164,400 200,600 145,800 250,700

Resident 6 157,000 119,000 106,800 100,900 140,800

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

Year to Year Comparison

Resident 1 Resident 2 Resident 3

Resident 4 Resident 5 Resident 6 29

Item 9.



Aug 32,900 Aug 11,500 Aug 11,400 Aug 3,400 Aug 24,800

Sep 27,600 Sep 24,800 Sep 30,500 Sep 8,400 Sep 34,500

Oct 8,400 Oct 24,900 Oct 22,200 Oct 13,800 Oct 12,000

68,900 61,200 64,100 25,600 71,300

Aug 33,500 Aug 33,300 Aug 28,800 Aug 16,600 Aug 41,600

Sep 29,500 Sep 36,800 Sep 45,000 Sep 19,200 Sep 18,600

Oct 33,100 Oct 23,200 Oct 18,900 Oct 16,700 Oct 19,300

96,100 93,300 92,700 52,500 79,500

Aug 21,000 Aug 26,200 Aug 59,600 Aug 25,200 Aug 63,000

Sep 33,100 Sep 28,700 Sep 48,600 Sep 21,400 Sep 48,500

Oct 31,200 Oct 33,200 Oct 3,800 Oct 30,800 Oct 22,200

85,300 88,100 112,000 77,400 133,700

Aug 100,400 Aug 28,000 Aug 61,500 Aug 34,700 Aug 56,100

Sep 58,200 Sep 71,900 Sep 85,000 Sep 55,900 Sep 82,200

Oct 40,900 Oct 40,100 Oct 59,900 Oct 41,600 Oct 66,500

199,500 140,000 206,400 132,200 204,800

Aug 51,700 Aug 62,900 Aug 37,900 Aug 68,500 Aug 22,500

Sep 39,500 Sep 53,300 Sep 86,500 Sep 37,500 Sep 103,300

Oct 12,300 Oct 48,200 Oct 76,200 Oct 39,800 Oct 124,900

103,500 164,400 200,600 145,800 250,700

Aug 55,300 Aug 40,700 Aug 40,500 Aug 29,200 Aug 59,900

Sep 63,600 Sep 36,500 Sep 47,200 Sep 35,200 Sep 38,100

Oct 38,100 Oct 41,800 Oct 19,100 Oct 36,500 Oct 42,800

157,000 119,000 106,800 100,900 140,800

2018 2019 2020 2021

2018 2019 2020 2021

20222018 2019 2020 2021

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

2022

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

2022

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

30

Item 9.



Data from AMI System

31

Item 9.



32

Item 9.



33

Item 9.



Looking ahead for 2023

 Lake Waco Reservoir Level

 Maintain?

 Drop?

 Likelihood City of Waco (COW) will implement Stage 3 or 4 of their Drought 

Contingency Plan

 Outlook for Hewitt

 How long can we sustain from supplementing with COW water?

 Do we alter our Stage 2 restrictions?

 If COW issues Stage 3, Hewitt will HAVE to follow IF we purchase water during that 

time

34

Item 9.



Current/Future Drought Contingency 

Plan

 Ideas to improve conservation

1. Shorten irrigation times, 4-6hrs?

2. Change irrigation time frame?

3. Change # of recovery days from 1 

to 2?

4. Encourage more hand watering?

35

Item 9.



Thoughts/Questions

Ideas?

36

Item 9.


	Top
	Item 1.	Finance - Audit Report
	Agenda Item - Audit Presentation 3 20 2023

	Item 2.	Special Presentation - Library
	Achievement of Library Excellence Award Information Sheet 2022

	Item 3.	Administration: Minutes
	Approval of Minutes
	2023-03-06 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes

	Item 4.	Finance-Motion to accept ACFR
	Agenda Item - Audit Acceptance 3 20 23

	Item 5.	Finance - Financial Statements
	Agenda item-Financial Statements

	Item 6.	Administration: Appointment to the Library Board
	Appointment - Library Board
	Scan_0025

	Item 7.	Chief Jim Devlin
	Agenda item briefing HPD Vehicles
	CAP Fleet Quote

	Item 8.	Bo Thomas
	agenda iten utec
	waiver request
	email string County

	Item 9.	Utilities Department
	Agenda item  for Discussion of Drought Contingency  2023
	Drought Contingency Review

	Bottom

